
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
March 02, 2016 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Mark Lowry with Grace Pointe Community Church 
PLEDGE 
 

Please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak card” to the City Clerk.  Action may not be taken by the Council at this meeting but questions 

may be answered by staff or issues may be referred for appropriate staff action.  If further action is necessary, the item may be placed 

on the agenda for further review and consideration.  NOTE:  Zoning or code enforcement matters which may be coming before the 

Board at a later date should not be discussed until such time as they come before the Board in a public hearing.  

Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on propositions before the City 
Council.  Accordingly, comments, questions, and concerns regarding items listed on this agenda shall be received at the time the City 
Council addresses such items during this meeting.  Public comments are generally limited to four minutes. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council Workshop meeting January 15, 2016. 
2. City Council Special meeting January 15, 2016. 
3. City Council meeting February 17, 2016. 

 
PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Proclamations:  

1. Art & Foliage Festival Weekend Proclamation presented to GFWC Apopka Woman's Club.  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 
 
Employee Recognition: 

 Ten Year Service Award – John Hanson, Community Development/Building  
 Ten Year Service Award – Susan Reed, Public Services/Waste Water Plants 
 Ten Year Service Award – Vicky Carnicella, Fire Department/Fire Chief’s Office  
 Ten Year Service Award – William Sein Perez, Public Services/Facilities Maintenance  
 Fifteen Year Service Award – Nathan Sturm, Fire Department/Emergency Medical Services   
 Twenty Year Service Award – Bradley Green, Public Services/Streets & Grounds   

 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve appointment of the Fifth Trustee to the General Employees' Pension Board. 
2. Approve appointment of the Fifth Trustee to the Firefighters' Pension Board. 
3. Approve appointment of the Fifth Trustee to the Police Officers' Pension Board. 
4. Approve appointments to the Public Risk Management Board of Directors. 
5. Authorize the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe Reserve, Phase 4. 
6. Award Bid No. 2016-02 to Wheeled Coach Industries, Inc. 
7. Award a contract to PRMG for a Police Impact Fee Study and amend the Fire/EMS Impact Fee Study contract. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2473 – Second Reading – Corrective Ordinance David Moon 
 
APPROPRIATIONS/DONATIONS/GRANTS (Action Item) 

1. Donation offer of real property to the City.  Glenn A. Irby 
2. NRPA "Walk With Ease" Grant - Acceptance agreement and funding.  Glenn A. Irby 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Final Development Plan - Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center David Moon 
2. Council 
3. Public 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT 

1. Appointment of Community Development Director.  

- Page 1 -



  
 

 
NOT REQUIRING ACTION 

1. Thank you letter to the City of Apopka Cemetery Staff. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

March 03, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

March 04, 2016 6:00pm –   Free Movie at the Amphitheater: Minions. 

March 05, 2016 1:00pm –   Tree Planting Ceremony in Memory of Mary Bridges – Alonzo Williams Park 

March 07, 2016 6:00pm – 8:00pm Apopka Visioning – Steering Committee Meeting 

March 08, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

March 16, 2016 7:00pm – City Council Meeting 

March 17, 2016 9:00am – 12:00pm Seniors Fun & Fitness Fair – Fran Carlton Center 

March 19, 2016 7:00am – 8:30am  5K Rabbit Run to benefit ACS Relay for Life – Northwest Recreation Complex 

March 19, 2016 9:30am –  Easter Egg-Stravaganza – Northwest Recreation Complex 

April 03, 2016 1:00pm – MLB Pitch Hit & Run Local Competition (Reg.12:30) – Northwest Recreation Comples 

April 06, 2016 1:30pm – City Council Meeting 

April 07, 2016 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

April 09, 2016 2:00pm Jay Howard Football Camp/Community Outreach – Northwest Recreation Complex 

April 12, 2016 5:30pm – 6:00pm Planning Commission Meeting 

April 20, 2016 7:00pm – City Council Meeting  

April 23, 2016 3:00pm – Krazy Kids Inflatable Fun Run 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

- Page 2 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. City Council Workshop meeting January 15, 2016. 
  

- Page 3 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the City Council workshop held on January 15, 2016, at 11:00 a.m., in the City of 

Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

   Commissioner Sam Ruth 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

 

PRESS PRESENT:   John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

 

INVOCATION:  Mayor Kilsheimer asked John Ricketson to give the invocation.  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Kilsheimer led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

DISCUSSION 

1. Taurus Southern Investments to address the City Council on the sale and purchase 

agreement of certain real property in the area of Martin’s Pond. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this workshop was being held to hear a proposal to sell certain 

property owned by the City of Apopka. A request for proposal was put out last July to 

develop the property known as the City Center property that is approximately 34 plus or 

minus acres around Martin’s Pond and Highland Manor. A response was received to the 

proposal from Taurus Southern Investments. The Council voted to open negotiations with 

Taurus Southern Investments and these negotiations have resulted in a proposed contract 

for the sale and purchase of the property which is the purpose of this workshop.  

 

Jeff McFadden, Managing Partner, Taurus Southern Investments, said Taurus will be 40 

years old this year and they are a private equity development and real estate investment 

firm worldwide, owning roughly 12 million square feet of developed real estate across the 

world. He stated their role in this project is to identify opportunities, provide equity, and 

provide debt to make the entire project work. Their most important role is to identify the 

right consultants and the right people to help design the project. He introduced the Taurus 

Team who will be discussing the project details: Craig Govan is his partner and will be 

working with him; Bob Lochrane, Engineer, is responsible for the civil engineering portion 

of the project and the traffic studies and design; Kim McCann is responsible for the overall 

design of the project; Jill Rose is with BishopBeale and responsible for retail leasing; and 

Amanda Gifford, Attorney for Taurus Southern Investments.  

 

Kim McCann said she is a partner at Eleven 18 Architecture in downtown Orlando and 

they are extremely excited about the opportunity at Apopka City Center. She reviewed the 

site that they have analyzed as it currently exists. She stated on their first analysis of the 

project they are looking for an upscale design with pedestrian flow, a design that connects 

the community that has street improvements and provides a connection to the property all 

the way through downtown. She said they are proposing a pedestrian bridge connecting the 
- Page 4 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council workshop held on January 15, 2016, at 11:00 a.m.  

Page 2 

 

north and south sides with over 200,000 square feet of retail, restaurants, and office space. 

They are proposing a five-story hotel, and in the second phase multifamily and possibly 

senior living. There will be adequate parking in both service parking and a possible parking 

garage. She affirmed there are proposed infrastructure improvements of S.R. 441 and Sixth 

Street with Sixth Street becoming more of a boulevard concept providing the connection 

through downtown, which will provide urban development that can occur. She advised 

design of the buildings has not started at this point, but she reviewed images of the designs 

they would like to incorporate such as large sidewalks to accommodate outdoor dining, 

street fairs and art festivals, and pedestrian access.  

 

In response to Mayor Kilsheimer inquiring about the architecture, Ms. McCann affirmed 

the images being depicted are not necessarily what will be the style for this project. This is 

why they are showing various architectural styles in each image. She stated each city is 

different and needs its own style and identity. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the common theme they are emphasizing is the open pedestrian 

walkways, and accessibility of the whole City Center project.  

 

Ms. McCann responded in the affirmative, stating the City Center project is designed with 

the pedestrian in mind and the idea that streets could easily be quarantined off for any 

special events.  She said the lake, also known as Martin’s Pond, is the beautiful part of this 

project and they will be focusing on it. She affirmed they did a study looking out larger 

than the actual property to what an entire master plan of the community would evolve to. 

She reviewed an outline of this study area stating stage one is identified as the one to four 

year plan that includes approximately 11 acres which includes the lake and a boardwalk 

around it, pedestrian bridge, new streetscapes, and the relocation of Highland Manor on to 

the peninsula. She went on to say stage two would be completing the beautification of Sixth 

Street, making it a boulevard with a median in the center, bike friendly, interconnecting the 

trail to this project  She went over what they propose as their action plan, which includes 

finalizing the master plan, and preparing design of the roadways and infrastructure. 

 

Bob Lochrane, Lochrane Engineering, said they will be the civil engineers for this project. 

He said with regards to infrastructure for the City Center, you are referring to utility 

services, stormwater management and design, and pedestrian and vehicle movements. He 

stated utilities and stormwater were in place to service the City Center without any major 

upgrades. The focus of his discussion will be the road and vehicular improvements to make 

coming to the City Center an enjoyable experience. He reviewed the improvements stating 

access to the site for vehicles coming from the west or east on S.R. 436 will access the site 

at McGee Avenue and Main Street where significant improvements will be needed. They 

are proposing a traffic signal at that intersection and either an extension of the existing west 

bound left turn lane, or dual left turn lanes to allow vehicles coming from the east to access 

the site at that intersection. They are also proposing a right turn deceleration lane for 

vehicles coming from the east to gain access to the northern portion of the City Center 

without adversely affecting traffic flow at the intersection.  Additional improvements on 

S.R. 441 for vehicles coming from the south include realignment of Sixth Street further 

north with a traffic signal at that location and making Sixth Street a boulevard 

thoroughfare, as opposed to the two lane road it currently is. They anticipate other 

improvements to McGee Avenue to allow additional traffic coming in to be 
- Page 5 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council workshop held on January 15, 2016, at 11:00 a.m.  

Page 3 

 

accommodated. He said it was mentioned earlier the pedestrian bridge crossing Main Street 

just east of McGee Avenue, and this will be an element of the overall pedestrian traffic for 

the project. The property will be provided with a very well-coordinated pedestrian system 

on site connecting to the offsite pedestrian system.  

 

Ms. McCann again reviewed the stage one proposal showing some conceptual designs. She 

stated moving Highland Manor will make it a landmark marquee of the entire project and it 

will be interconnected with the boardwalks around and across the pond. She reiterated these 

are not the final designs, but ideas. They are proposing outdoor seating and entertainment 

and they will be integrating the beautiful oak trees on the property, keeping that history and 

building on it.  

 

Jill Rose, Vice President of Retail Services with BishopBeale Realty, said she has been 

tasked with drawing the trade area based on driving patterns and shopping habits of the 

residents in this area and who would come here to shop and eat on a regular basis. She 

spoke about the demographics stating the trade area was very strong from a demographic 

perspective of approximately 140,000 within the trade area. She said the median income 

was very strong of $56,000 per year and an average income of $74,000 per year.  She 

advised retailers focus on the median income. She stated there were a lot of families in this 

area and the household multiplier was 2.7 with a median age of 38.  She came up with uses 

of who they thought would be successful in this area and then went deeper to look at 

specific users within each of those uses.  They believe strongly the project needs an anchor 

and she reviewed potential anchor stores that would be supported by the residents in the 

area. She stated they feel entertainment use would be very successful in this area. In 

addition, restaurants that they would work to meet the demographics, as well as retail and 

various service areas.  

 

Ms. McCann said the overall concept of this project and what they stress is how to take all 

of these components and give it the longevity and appeal that it needs, not only for Apopka, 

for also for drawing others to the area.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding the moving of Highland Manor and concerns by the Council 

regarding the area.  Ms. McCann said they feel this area is a prime spot for Highland Manor 

to be moved to and the view from S.R. 441 creates a signature area. She pointed out that it 

is not the location that is historic, but the building and its unique quality.   

 

In response to Commissioner Velazquez inquiring what has been transpired with FDOT, 

Mr. Lochrane advised he has not had any direct communication with FDOT at this point. 

They have had their in-house traffic consultant look at the overall broader view of this 

corridor to come up with the program they are discussing. Once they have more 

commitment for the overall project, they will contact FDOT to open that communication. 

 

Commissioner Dean inquired if Taurus was the only developer to submit an offer, to which 

Mr. Irby responded in the affirmative.  

 

Commissioner Dean said while he wants to see the City Center built, he was reluctant about 

moving forward as fast as they are with regards to the sale of the property. 

 
- Page 6 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council workshop held on January 15, 2016, at 11:00 a.m.  

Page 4 

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith also expressed concern about moving Highland Manor and 

inquired if the area was going to have to be filled in around the pond, as well as inquiring 

about parking in the area.  

 

Tom Callan, Esquire, responded in the affirmative and said there would be stem walls, 

subject to being permitted by SJWMD.  

 

Ms. McCann advised from an event standpoint, valet parking was planned. 

 

In response to Commissioner Ruth regarding commercial versus residential, Ms. McCann 

advised there would be a mix of retail, medical office, and possibly a hotel in the first 

phase.  

 

Mr. McFadden explained the structure of the contract has the city responsible for utilities to 

the site, the public roadways and the pond are the responsibility of the city, the roadways 

and wide sidewalks on property are the developer’s responsibility.  

 

Commissioner Dean suggested if moving Highland Manor, the city does not have a historic 

district, and recommended moving it across from the VFW/Community Center and develop 

a historic district in that area.  

 

Mr. Callan said the developer pays all costs to connect to utilities. He stated there were 

additional considerations in the agreement that go beyond the purchase price per acre, 

stating they will be designing the entire area, public bike paths and pedestrian tracts, and 

the idea of using and making sure this area connects to any future bike paths. The developer 

will be maintaining the property.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the City had this property independently appraised and the 

average market price per acre was $217,650. The Orange County Property Appraiser has 

the average price per acre right at $100,000.  He said all of the money the city has spent so 

far was an investment in the future of the city. He stated the $150,000 per acre is a price 

proposed by Taurus and will allow them to start development.  He stated the city center 

area is within the Community Redevelopment Area, stating the state statute allows for the 

city to dispose of the property at a price they agree upon as long as the objectives of the city 

are being met in the development plan.  

 

Discussion was held and concerns expressed with regards to this being spread out over 10 

years and the city being obligated upfront and not receiving their money until over a 10 

year period. 

 

Mr. Callan advised there was no obligation in this contract for the city to spend any money 

He said the development agreement must be completed within 30 days, or 60 is agreed to 

by both parties.  

 

Mr. McFadden thanked everyone and said they were looking forward to working with the 

city and staff.  

 

 
- Page 7 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council workshop held on January 15, 2016, at 11:00 a.m.  

Page 5 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 12:11 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

- Page 8 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. City Council Special meeting January 15, 2016. 
  

- Page 9 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the City Council special meeting held on January 15, 2016, immediately 

following the 11:00 a.m. workshop, in the City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Sam Ruth 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:   John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

 

 

CONSENT ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. Authorize demolitions of the buildings on Lent Road & West Lester Road 

2. Authorize electrical upgrade at the NWRC at a cost not to exceed $19,000.00. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith to 

approve the Consent Agenda as submitted. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

DISCUSSION 

1. Sales & Purchase Agreement; Taurus Southern Investments 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public input. 

 

Jeff Welch said he was wearing two hats today, one as the Chairman of the Chamber of 

Commerce, however, he was speaking as an individual. He stated one of the challenges in the 

community was the lack of commercial corridor and the Chamber applauds the opportunity of 

more businesses coming in to serve the needs of this community. He also is representative of 

Kelly Park Crossing and the development that was approved as a DRI at the Kelly Park exit of 

the Wekiva Parkway is the only commercial exit on the Wekiva Parkway. He stated they 

believe the big box stores will come to that area. He said the developer needs to control the 

land before they can spend money on the development. 

 

Ray Shackelford said upfront that he favors establishment of the town center. He cautioned in 

proceeding forward, the property values increased, garbage collection fees increased, and 

possibly utility fees may increase. In consideration of this project, he asked to try and sell for 

the appraised value. He stated since this is over ten years, it would be nice to receive interest on 

the funding. 

 

Tenita Reid spoke in favor of the downtown center, but expressed concerns that the price they 

are selling the land for is too low. She stated she would not want to see the property flipped to 

another developer rather than developing the town center. She also expressed concerns 

regarding moving Highland Manor. 

 
- Page 10 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council workshop held on January 15, 2016, at 11:00 a.m.  

Page 2 

 

Young Kim said as a business person, when dealing with a corporation or company, you do not 

take the first bid and there should be a bargaining process and negotiate with the company. 

 

Suzanne Kidd had questions related to the agreement regarding the 15-day inspection period, 

yet in another area it mentioned the property being purchased in an as-is condition. She asked 

why it was subject to inspection if being purchased as-is, to which Mr. Calan advised a typical 

commercial real estate contract has an inspection process before the person decides to purchase 

the property as-is.  

 

Ms. Kidd inquired about the amount of time the developer has to work on this giving the buyer 

up to 700 days to close on four of the parcels and then they have up to ten years to close on all 

of the parcels. In addition, they have up to thirty-six months to develop 50,000 square feet and 

stated this seems like a small amount of development over a three year period. 

 

Jan Chamberlin, Vanson Property Group, said they are owners and managers of a small retail 

center at 395 East Main Street, and stated she disputed the trade area including the Wekiva 

Sweetwater area and stated there is already a fragile balance in retail for Apopka already.  

 

Rod Love said he commended and agreed with Commissioner Arrowsmith that this project 

should move forward and it was time to do something with this property. He stated Dr. 

Shackelford made a point about the funding and interest was worth discussing. He suggested 

other options be considered with regards to moving Highland Manor. He asked for serious 

consideration for minority, women, and veteran contracting for this project by the developer 

and City.  

 

Dennis New said he came to the meeting for information and expressed concerns regarding 

selling this property at a loss.  He stated he has lived here his entire life and said the state wants 

the traffic to flow at the intersection of 441 and 436. He said he agreed there must be some 

hidden costs with this project, but he will stand behind the elected officials in the decision they 

make.  

 

Leann Bellinger said she would have thought a project of this magnitude would have been 

advertised statewide. She asked what would happen if FDOT denies a traffic light or work on 

the road in this area.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public input. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said we are in a due diligence phase, and there have been negotiations with 

Taurus since the fall of 2015.  He stated their team is highly capable and their team is fully 

experienced in bringing about these types of projects. He recommended moving forward to see 

if they can come to an agreement. He affirmed Apopka is at a threshold of growth in Central 

Florida.  

 

Commissioner Dean supported having interest on the $5 million.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez said the developer needs to have ownership or control in order to 

move forward with any negotiations for development.  

 
- Page 11 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a City Council workshop held on January 15, 2016, at 11:00 a.m.  

Page 3 

 

Mr. Callan clarified the purchase price, stating the purchase price by Taurus is $150,000 per 

acre for each acre of the development, of which, only about 11 acres so far are planned for 

commercial/retail type of development. If you look at the appraisal the City obtained, it was on 

11 acres for commercial development. He said there were negotiations back and forth with staff 

and it should be acknowledged this is a blended rate for both residential and commercial 

development in a project. He said it was a good value on the blended rate.  

 

Commissioner Dean brought up negotiating interest to be paid on the $5 million. 

 

Mr. McFadden declared they were not borrowing $5 million dollars. They are purchasing land 

as they take it down. He said to have interest accrue on land they do not own does not make 

sense to him and does not feel this is the appropriate venue to negotiate a purchase and sale 

agreement that they have worked on for months.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean to put in the contract, when negotiated, that Taurus 

pay interest on the $5 million dollars over the ten years needed to pay it off. Motion failed 

due to lack of a second. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said that would be a negotiated issue, not something that can just be placed 

in the agreement. Taurus would have to agree to pay this if the City demanded this and Mr. 

McFadden has given the answer that they would not be interested in paying interest.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith to 

approve the proposed sale and purchase agreement of the city owned land to Taurus 

Southern Investments. Motion carried 4-1 with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye, and Commissioner Dean voting nay. 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 12:11 p.m. 
 

 

 

___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

- Page 12 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. City Council meeting February 17, 2016. 
  

- Page 13 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on February 17, 2016, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Sam Ruth 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:    John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel 

    Dale Fenwick, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION:  Commissioner Velazquez introduced Sister Ann Kendrick of Hope CommUnity 

Center, who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on February 23, 1945, photographer Joe 

Rosenthal photographed U.S. Marines raising the American Flag on Mount Suribachi, the highest 

point on the Island of Iwo Jima. Mount Suribachi was a strategic point in the battle for the control 

of the Island, as it was the center of Japanese defense, and the Flag Raising was an important 

turning point in the Battle of Iwo Jima. Rosenthal’s photograph perfectly captured a victorious 

moment on the battlefield that served as a source of great pride here in the United States.  He asked 

everyone to reflect upon the bravery and sacrifices of those who fought for our freedoms as he led 

in the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting February 3, 2016. 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to approve 

the February 3, 2016 City Council minutes. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Proclamations: 

1. FFA Proclamation – Mayor Kilsheimer said this proclamation was being postponed to next 

month.  

 

Presentations: 

1. Presentation from Farmworker Association of Florida on House Bill 675.  

Tirso Moreno gave a presentation on House Bill 675 stating he has been living in Apopka 

since the early 1980’s on a permanent basis. He stated during this legislative session House 

Bill 675 and Senate Bill 872 are going through the legislature with the intent to make local 

governments responsible for enforcing and implementing immigration laws. He declared 

this would cause discrimination to the Latino community. To enforce the law will require 

funding and affect all of Apopka, not just the immigrants. He advised the House has 

- Page 14 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

approved the Bill and it is in committees for the Senate.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said from a strategic standpoint it is late in the session for the Council to 

prepare a position to be presented. He stated he would be happy to call legislators he knows 

and request other Commissioners make calls if they so choose.  

 

2. Presentation on Canterwoods Assisted Living Facility (ALF) (a.k.a. Dunn ALF/Dixie 

Manor) – David Moon, Planning Manager, said in April 2015, City Council approved the 

planned unit development (PUD) master plan for the Dunn Assisted Living Facility located 

north of Old Dixie Highway, east of Richard L Mark Drive, in front of the Errol Estates 

Community. He advised within that PUD master plan, which allows up to a 125 bed 

facility, there is an architectural rendering of the proposed building and within the PUD 

conditions, it states that architectural design of the building shall be generally consistent 

with that approved with the PUD ordinance, unless otherwise approved by the City 

Council. He advised a developer and Assisted Living Facility (ALF) provider is interested 

in the Dunn property and ready to move forward with the construction of an ALF. He 

affirmed the design is different than that previously approved by City Council. The 

applicant will make a presentation of the architectural design and if Council has any 

concerns, this will be moved to public hearings.  He affirmed staff does not believe it is a 

substantial deviation and an improvement over the previously approved design.  

 

Martin Hamburg, MJM Associates, said they were pleased to have the opportunity to 

present and tell Council about Canterwood Manor, which is an assisted living community 

they would like to develop in the City of Apopka. He advised this was assisted living and 

also a facility that serves individuals with memory impairment with Alzheimer’s disease, 

known as special needs assisted living. He said they promote independence and allow 

residents to do for themselves everything they are able to do. They foster family 

involvement through activities. They create opportunities for residents to spend as much 

time each day using the skills and memories they retain and help families understand what 

is happening with their loved ones throughout the course of this disease. He stated they 

employee the best staff, utilize the best diagnostic and therapeutic programs available, and 

respond quickly to their residents’ changing needs.  
 

David Knapp, Architect for the Haskel Company, reviewed the design they created that 

meets the original requirements of the approved project, and also added benefits. This 

design works on the original approved design requirements, but makes a more residential 

looking building. They have moved all parking to one side, and the building design is 

centered on courtyards for the residents. The design incorporates one-story and two-story 

buildings.  He explained the design is based on multiple neighborhoods, each having their 

own dining area.  They have a community space with an outdoor area that is offered to the 

community in general as well. The second floor has physical therapy and other functions. 

He reviewed the design of the building stating they tried to pick up on the design of the 

surrounding community.  
 

Discussion ensued regarding the proposed roofing with Commissioner Dean expressing his 

dislike of metal roofs.  
 

It was the consensus of the Council the proposed design was substantially in compliance 

- Page 15 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

with the concept plans originally approved and to move forward. The applicant stated they 

will adhere to the type of roofing Council advises staff to proceed with.  

 

3. Announcement of Community Consensus Meeting scheduled February 23, 2016. 

Suzanne Kidd announced there will be a Community Consensus Meeting for the Visioning 

on February 23, 2016 at Highland Manor. She said to refresh everyone’s memory, the 

Visioning process started last July with surveys, seven community meetings, three mobile 

information station events, and they went through a synthesis of the citizens’ concerns 

voiced. At this point, a strategic plan has been devised around those ideas with five broad 

categories related to economic development, educational opportunities, infrastructure and 

growth, improving city services, and the quality of life issues. She declared they would like 

to encourage as many people from the community as possible to come to the meeting on 

February 23, 2016, at Highland Manor from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m.  

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the annual fuel contract renewal with Petroleum Traders Corporation. 

2. Authorize the purchase of two vehicles for the Recreation Department. 

3. Authorize the Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement for Marden Ridge. 

4. Authorize the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe Reserve, Phase 2. 

5. Authorize the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe Reserve, Phase 3. 

6. Authorize a donation to the Kid's House Children’s Advocacy Center. 

7. Approval of Dr. Charles E. Dorfman’s Lease Renewal. 

8. Authorize direction for land purchase on Park Ave. 

 

In response to an inquiry by Commissioner Dean regarding Item 8, Mr. Irby advised the due 

diligence on this requires an environmental assessment that could run up to an estimate of 

$8,000, a title search to determine any encumbrances on the property which could cost a 

maximum of $500, and an appraisal, no more than $2,000, to ensure we are not paying more 

than the valued price. He advised if this proceeds to an environmental 2 survey, this entire 

area has been designated as a brownfield area, and that money could be reimbursed and the 

site cleaned, once the city owns the property. He affirmed, if the city decides not to purchase 

the property, then, those funds are not recoverable.  

 

In regards to Commissioner Arrowsmith inquiring about Item 1 and what the city’s fuel 

consumption was, Mr. Irby said he could obtain that information for him.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to approve 

the eight items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2474– Second Reading – First Reading – Amending the Apopka Municipal 

Code, Chapter 26. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2474 

 

- Page 16 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 26, 

“CAPITAL FACILITIES FEES,” ARTICLE IV, “WATER, SEWER 

AND REUSE CAPITAL FACILITY FEES AND FUND,” SECTIONS 26-

112, “DEFINITIONS,” 26-117, “WATER CAPITAL FACILITY FEE,” 

26-118, “SEWER CAPITAL FACILITY FEE,” AND 26-119, “REUSE 

CAPITAL FACILITY FEE;” AMENDING FEE CALCULATIONS; 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this ordinance is with regards to impact fees and the second ordinance 

is about rates. He affirmed the City is moving in this direction due to the requirement of 

building a new wastewater treatment plant. He stated we are under a consent agreement with 

the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) to increase the removal of nitrogen from 

the wastewater prior to it being discharged into the environment, as well as the need for 

additional capacity.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Tenita Reid spoke in favor of increasing impact fees on new development in the city based 

upon the impact new development creates. She stated the impact fees were inadequate and 

should be adjusted to collect more revenues.  

 

Aida Campbell spoke concerning the increase of utilities and how it affects older people on 

fixed income. She asked the Council to lift the water rates for citizens 63 years of age.  

 

Chris Kewley said his family made the decision to move to Apopka 14 years ago, stating at 

the time this area represented a tremendous value to them. He spoke about the prior City 

Council platting Rock Springs Ridge into half acre, or larger lots, and also mandated St. 

Augustine grass be put in. He discussed reclaimed water being reasonable at first, but it has 

been determined to be a commodity. He pointed out other municipalities do not have 

reclaimed water at these rates. He said he understands the growth, but stated the whole rate 

structure regarding reclaimed water is absurd.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer stated he installed an evapotranspiration controller at his home and it has 

paid for itself, as it waters as needed, rather than on a time schedule. He affirmed the rate 

structure is a condition of the City’s consumptive use permit with St. John’s Water 

Management District.  

 

Don Estes said he has installed the computerized controller and changed his irrigation heads as 

suggested by the City, and his bill is exactly like Mr. Kewley’s in the summer months. He 

asked the Council to consider talking to SJWMD to raise the consumptive use threshold.  

 

Rod Love said he wanted to echo comments made by the two previous speakers regarding 

reclaimed water. He spoke about red light cameras and their going through the legislature at 

this time with the main issue being addressed of municipalities supplementing revenues. He 

inquired about regulations by SJWMD and stated if that threshold can be increased, it would 
- Page 17 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

help residents.  

 

Mike Cooper said listening to all of this about water conservation, California has a big drought 

problem and had to limit grow areas. He asked if the City had any thoughts in reducing the 

green areas like California had to do. He stated this would reduce the cost and usage.  

 

Young Kim said he has been talking to a lot of people recently and one concerned resident 

asked that he speak on her behalf. He stated the City has to provide notice and there has to be 

a deliberative process all of Apopka citizens must get involved in.  He said when these issues 

are quickly addressed within three to four weeks, how can every citizens’ issue be addressed. 

He suggested all citizens have not been provided adequate notice. 

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2474. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No. 2475 – Second Reading – Amending the Apopka Municipal Code, Chapter 82. 

The City Clerk read the title as follows 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2475 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 

THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 82, 

“UTILITIES,” ARTICLE II, “WATER AND SEWER SYSTEMS,” 

DIVISION II, “FEES AND CHARGES,” SECTIONS 82-61, “WATER 

CONNECTION FEES,” 82-62, “SEWER TAP FEES,” 82-64, 

“INITIATION OF WATER SERVICE,” 82-65, “WATER USE 

CHARGES AND DEPOSIT,” 82-66, “WASTEWATER USE CHARGES 

AND DEPOSIT,” 82-67,  “DEFECTIVE WATER METERS,” 82-69, 

“WATER AND RECLAIMED WATER METER READING RE-

CHECK,” AND DIVISION III, “RECLAIMED WATER SYSTEM,” 

SECTIONS 82-92, “CONNECTION CHARGES,” 82-94, “RECLAIMED 

WATER USE CHARGES, AND 82-98, “AUTHORITY TO PRESCRIBE 

ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS;” ARTICLE IV, “BILLING AND 

COLLECTION PROCEDURES,” SECTIONS 82-179, “TERMINATION 

OF SERVICE GENERALLY; LATE PAYMENT CHARGE, ILLEGAL 

USE OF WATER, TAMPERING, MAINTENANCE OF CUSTOMERS 

FACILITIES, 82-182, “AFTER-HOURS SERVICE CHARGE;” 

PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator, pointed out a scrivener’s in this ordinance, stating at the top of 

page four there is one sentence that has been stricken that states: “There will be an additional 

$10.00 for each additional linear foot for service over 50 linear feet.”  Also, on page eight, 

toward the bottom it states: “There will be an additional charge of $10.00 for every linear foot 
- Page 18 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

of service over 50 linear feet.”  In order to be consistent, he advised this statement on page 

four needs to be un-stricken.  

Mayor Kilsheimer clarified this will need to be included in the motion as a corrective item on 

the scrivener’s error. 

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said there was a lot of discussion at the last meeting regarding the 

cost of turning the water off when they didn’t pay and the cost for turning it back on. He 

inquired if it was determined how many homes on an average that involved.  

 

Mr. Irby, advised as reported in the staff report, it is an average of 272 a week, which is a little 

more than 1% of the total services currently in existence. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Ed Poirier said he had a problem with doubling the rates for people who are delinquent, 

stating most people who have their water shut off are those who can’t afford to pay their bill. 

He inquired if any of the additional revenue would be used to do more testing of the water and 

removal of the asbestos water pipes still in use.  

 

Tenita Reid said since Ordinance No. 2474 was approved and impact fees were reduced 13%, 

she thought some of the fees on the citizens’ portion should be reduced.  She also questioned 

if the City was going to charge for emergency cut offs where someone may need a plumber 

for a repair. She reviewed various fees in the ordinance that she felt could be reduced.  

 

Ray Shackelford said the City has raised property taxes due to increased property values, and 

the garbage collection fees have been raised. He asked to give residents on fixed incomes and 

working people a no vote on this ordinance.  

 

Bobby Reid expressed concern regarding after hour fees and said the cutting off water has 

always been a courtesy. He asked if the plumbers will be able to cut the water off and on to do 

their work. 

 

Mr. Irby responded in the affirmative.  
 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer reiterated the need for a new wastewater treatment plant to be built under 

the consent agreement by DEP that must be completed by March 2019. He said this is the 

largest construction project in the history of the City of Apopka.  
 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2475 with correction of a scrivener’s error on page four by un-striking 

“There will be an additional charge of $10.00 for every linear foot for service over 50 linear 

feet.”  
 

Discussion ensued regarding providing customers the ability to round up payments to the next 

dollar amount and that amount going into a separate fund to assist those with a hardship. 

 
- Page 19 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

Murray Hamilton with Public Resources Management Group, said they are the utility rate and 

financial consultant firm that performed the rate study. He stated they have presented to the 

Council a number of times since last year. He pointed out there is another agenda item, Item 6, 

that relates to the State Revolving Fund Loan, and he reminded Council the City has put forth 

an application for the loan agreement. The basis for that application was the rate study, and 

included in Resolution 2016-06, is the City’s commitment and pledge to the monthly water 

and wastewater rates, as well as the impact fees to enter into that agreement and repay that 

debt. He advised the backbone of that application are the proposed rate increases over the next 

five years before Council tonight. He reiterated this has been more than a ten year plan in the 

works and monthly rates have not been increased over the last four to five years.  

 

Motion carried 4-1 with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Velazquez, 

and Ruth voting aye, and Commissioner Dean voting nay. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2488 – Second Reading – Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as follows 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2488 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO 

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY APOPKA HOLDING, LLC 

LOCATED AT 1120 CLARCONA ROAD AND 1124 SOUTH PARK 

AVENUE; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2488. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2473 – First Reading – Corrective Ordinance.  The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2473 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

CORRECTING SCRIVENER’S ERRORS IN THE LEGAL 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY OWNED BY TECHNOLOGY 

PROPERTY, LLC., IN ORDINANCE NO. 2439; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 
- Page 20 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 8 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2473 at First Reading and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

5. Resolution No. 2016-03 – Second Reading - Economic Enhancement District Designating 

Brownfield Districts. The City Clerk read the title as follows 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-03 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

DESIGNATING THE APOPKA COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AREA AS AN ECONOMIC ENHANCEMENT DISTRICT (FOR 

BROWNFIELD DESIGNATION); ESTABLISHING THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION AS THE ECONOMIC ENHANCEMENT ADVISORY 

BOARD; AUTHORIZING THE PLANNING MANAGER TO NOTIFY 

THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL 

PROTECTION OF SAID DESIGNATION; PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public input. 

 

Young Kim inquired what specific area was planning to clean up. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised there were no specific areas, but they were designating this area as 

a brownfield area so that we can apply for grants for a Phase 1 environmental study to identify 

potential areas. He further explained brownfield means you can apply for assistance from 

either the state or federal government to remediate whatever environmental condition may be 

there in order to allow redevelopment of that property.  

 

Jan Chamberlin inquired if there was a process where she might opt out of the brownfield 

designation should she so choose.  

 

David Moon said if one desires to opt out, they can provide the City with a written letter 

asking to be removed.  

 

Ms. Chamberlin asked if property owners can identify contaminated sites or future 

contaminated sites as they become known.  

 

City Attorney Shepard said if this is approved and the brownfield is created, a grant will be 

applied for to provide a study for the entire area for Phase 1, it becomes a public record, as 

would the Phase 2. Anyone could request this information as a public record.  

 

Mr. Moon clarified that the individual property owners apply for the grant in the Phase 1 study 

and it is not an area wide basis.  

 

City Attorney Shepard explained the incentive is if you can have the government supply the 

money to conduct the studies and the cleanup, then you are in a position to redevelop. These 
- Page 21 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

programs are designed so that first you can identify a problem, and then potentially get funds 

to help clean the area so the property can be utilized. 

 

Jeff Welch said this is a great program in a city like Apopka. He explained what happens in a 

city like Apopka where you have property where a gas station was, oil was changed, dry 

cleaning, or a hydraulic pump typically has qualification of what might be a brownfield. He 

said there were a number of retailers looking for brownfield sites as it provides an economic 

advantage to develop property that would otherwise just sit on the tax rolls.  

 

Ray Shackelford applauded the effort of the city to focus on brownfields and move in this 

direction. 

 

No others wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public input. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-03 at Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting 

aye. 

 

6. Resolution No. 2016-06 – The State Revolving Fund Loan Program for the water reclamation 

facility. The City Clerk read the title as follows 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, RELATING TO 

THE STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN PROGRAM; MAKING 

FINDINGS; AUTHORIZING THE LOAN APPLICATION; 

AUTHORIZING THE LOAN AGREEMENT; ESTABLISHING 

PLEDGED REVENUES; DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVES; PROVIDING ASSURANCES; PROVIDING 

FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY, AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to 

approve Resolution No. 2016-04. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

DISCUSSION (Action Item) 

 

1. Consultant Selection for Retail Development Strategy and Marketing Services 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, said the intent of the request for qualifications is to select a 

firm that will recruit sit down, full service and casual dining restaurants and retail stores to 

Apopka after the market analysis is done to identify certain target industries. He advised this is 

not a request for a study, but a request for services which is to recruit and prepare marketing 

materials. Five companies submitted qualifications that were narrowed down to three after staff 

reviewed and interviewed. Catalyst was identified as the most qualified to perform the services 

for the City of Apopka.  Jason Claunch, President of Catalyst, has flown in to address any 

questions Council may have. Staff believes this to be a desired service that was identified 
- Page 22 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 10 

 

during the visioning process by many citizens. He stated it is important to address competition 

with other local governments who are already performing these types of services either through 

economic development staff or consulting services. He explained this was a citywide effort and 

covers marketing research and recruiting throughout the City that will also complement the 

activities to attract businesses to the downtown area.  

 

In response to Commissioner Arrowsmith inquiring about the hiring of an economic 

development director, Mr. Irby advised the idea was to at some point in the future to hire an 

economic development director who would work hand in hand with Catalyst.  He stated this 

company is U.S. wide and has the ability to travel all inclusive of what we would be paying 

them, rather than trying to fly an employee around to recruit. They also employee other people 

that can be utilized to talk to various companies.  

 

Jason Claunch said he was not prepared to give a long presentation, but he would like to 

address key components of the process and answer questions. He stated he was very familiar 

with ICSC and he is the southern director for P-3 Alliance which is the ICSC representation for 

cities. He had an opportunity to tour the community and feels this is the moment in time for 

Apopka with a number of large infrastructure projects, many of which will have significant 

impacts to the community, including the Wekiva Parkway and the Hospital. He stated he did 

notice visually, it appears the economic basis has shifted from an agricultural community to 

more of a modern work horse, which he finds intriguing. He said they recognize an opportunity 

for very strong economic development. He stated they understand the needs and corporate 

America today is looking for nuance places. Developments that are most competitive include 

different housing types, and a number of large corporations want quality retail with access to 

walkable places. He stated part of this initiative will help reinforce bringing in brands and 

cleaning up brownfield sites. This process is about demographics and most retailers look for 

population and income. He said there are other things like workforce and the shift in consumer 

flow when the Parkway opens and how to position those opportunities. This level and their 

expertise would allow them to present Apopka in a fashion with those very specific criteria and 

factors retailers look for. He affirmed part of their role would be helping to market those 

factors in a meaningful way.  He said they approach every community understanding their 

needs and vision and look to build a collateral that is very specific to that objective.  

 

Jeff Welch said he is the Chairman of the Board of the Apopka Chamber of Commerce, and 

this is very important to the Chamber. He stated if you look at the success of chambers like 

Seminole County, Lake Mary, and Heathrow, Apopka has been left behind when agriculture 

jobs were taken away. Apopka took an approach of building houses and communities that built 

a tax base for the City. In the past decade younger people are moving here and finding this to 

be a place they can raise a family, but missing is the live, work, play those people want. He 

said Apopka has struggled with that as we don’t have commercial corridors. Thanks to some 

opportunities coming about now with the new downtown, the Hospital and Kelly Park 

Crossing, we are looking to establish commercial corridors. He stated if the City wants to be in 

charge of smart growth and development, then they need to take charge of this in order to have 

smart growth for the whole City. He pointed out Winter Garden and Fowler’s Grove and its 

success. He said Apopka is the second largest city in Orange County and has gone through the 

visioning process. He stated this is an important next step to the visioning.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said they are talking about getting into the economic development that other 
- Page 23 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 11 

 

cities are doing. He said Apopka is in the final stages of negotiating a development agreement 

with Taurus on the city center project.  He declared the City needs an active, unified economic 

development program. He affirmed ICSC was attended by himself and Mr. Welch and this is 

clearly a strategy other cities employ to be able to get economic development going.  

 

In response to Commissioner Velazquez regarding that Visioning was just finishing, and 

whether we were doing the same thing all over again, Mr. Moon explained Visioning was a 

different activity and is to identify the general community interest and receive guidance as to 

how the City should modify our land development code, comprehensive plan, and program 

services for the long term. He advised this was a service that will identify specific retail and 

restaurants, providing them information on why they should locate to Apopka on a citywide 

basis.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer suggested that action not be taken on this tonight and for Council to have a 

greater education by staff on what we are seeking to do and what this will accomplish.  

 

BUSINESS  
 

1. Council 

 

Commissioner Dean asked Mr. Irby to have the corner of Main and Central cleaned.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez thanked Chief McKinley and the Police Department and the Fire 

Department for how quickly and efficiently they responded when she was in an accident last 

Saturday.  

 

2. Public 

 

Barbara Zakszewski said there was a lot of discussion on spending money today. She stated 

we have a paid consultant, Richard Anderson, and said she would like to know what he is 

consulting on. She stated it was indicated the other day that he was not a registered lobbyist 

for 2014 and 2015. She expressed disappointment in that he does not file reports and said she 

would like to have him return funds paid for 2015 he received for lobbying services. She 

would like to see his contract terminated immediately and have a fraud and ethics 

investigation launched as it appears he has taken the money under false pretense.  

 

Ray Shackelford said he heard the Old Florida Outdoor Festival was great and asked when the 

public could obtain a financial report for the festival.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the financial reports are being reconciled and we do know that our 

revenue was the highest it has ever been.  

 

Mr. Shackelford applauded the article in the newspaper for accountability and inquired how 

the public could obtain a list of projects for 2014, 2015, and 2016 given to the city lobbyist to 

follow. He asked if the City of Apopka was seeking state funding to remove asbestos pipes 

from the water system. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer responded in the affirmative. 
- Page 24 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 12 

 

 

David Hoffman spoke regarding the story published in the Orlando Sentinel, written by 

Bethany Rodgers revealing little accountability for Richard Anderson, City Consultant and 

Lobbyist, to show what he has accomplished to justify his salary. He asked if the citizens 

would have access to an accounting of his efforts and accomplishments.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer responded to this situation addressing the recent news reports about 

Richard Anderson, his contract, and his failure to register as a lobbyist with the State of 

Florida. He stated he wanted to preface his remarks with the position he takes on virtually 

every decision made here at City Hall, and that is “What will move the City of Apopka 

forward.”  He took office in 2014 with a staff of roughly 400 people, half of whom were 

angry he had defeated Mayor Land, and the other half fearful he would fire them and disrupt 

their pensions. His promise during the campaign was that he would not fire anyone and he 

sought to stick to that promise while establishing an agenda to reflect changes he had 

campaigned on. He stated over the summer months, it became clear that Richard Anderson 

wanted to leave. Once the decision was made to go that route, the next thing that came into 

play was the employment agreement he already had in place with the City that was signed 

while Mayor Land was in office. He affirmed the majority of money Richard received, he 

would have received under his old agreement regardless of whether or not he had stayed with 

the City. He stated it was clear to him that Mr. Anderson had already made substantial 

progress toward securing the city center project we are currently negotiating and at the same 

time the form and shape of that deal was very much in the air, but clearly substance to the 

talks Richard had initiated. The choice was to let Mr. Anderson go, pay him the substantial 

amount his employment agreement called for, or retain him as a consultant/lobbyist and keep 

the city center project on track. He stated there was also a benefit in knowing should a crisis 

occur, Richard would be available to call upon. Indeed a crisis came up with Mayor Land 

passing away six weeks after Mr. Anderson left and he quietly stepped back in and facilitated 

all of the details of a memorial service that was befitting of Mayor Land’s stature. In the 

months between then and now, Richard has brought the city center project to the point where 

it is, negotiating with a qualified developer who has the financial resources to bring this 

project to reality. He said while the economy does play a role, you have to have willing 

partners on both sides to make a deal and that is where we are. What will move Apopka 

forward?  Clearly a city center project will move us forward and we are actively seeking this 

project. He reiterated Mr. Anderson would have received a substantial separation payment 

under his old contract, regardless of whether or not he was retained as a consultant. He stated 

that Mr. Anderson has been advocating on behalf of Apopka with interest throughout Central 

Florida the entire time that he has been in a consulting role.  

 

Larry Fisher said he has been here four or five times with Boy Scout groups or FFA groups 

and they are always sitting on the floor. He stated it was time to add space to the Council 

Chamber. He said his main reason for coming here was with regards to the downtown and the 

vibrancy trying to be achieved. He declared the focus should be within two miles of this 

building and the downtown area. He stated there should be more focus with drawing things to 

Apopka with the biotech research area.  

 

Rod Love summarized a few items he heard while sitting in the audience, stating he heard 

earlier regarding the business development and the consultant present was not well articulated 

until Mr. Welch spoke well about the end result. He said Apopka is in a competitive market. 
- Page 25 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on February17, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 13 

 

He also spoke about the issue of lobbyist and said he has seen Mr. Anderson in the Council 

Chamber twice. In order to be competitive, the City needs to have a voice for economic 

development. He stated three of the fastest growing areas in Florida are healthcare, 

hospitality, and construction. He declared he was for moving Apopka forward, but he would 

also like to have input in this process.  

 

Gayne Fisher said he has been a resident of Apopka for twelve years and he coaches little 

league here. He said the coach that was to manage his daughter’s team was rejected because 

of the City’s stringent policy. He asked this policy be re-evaluated. He stated this matter 

happened twenty-five years ago and he has exhausted all possibilities to have this looked at 

again.  

 

Mr. Irby advised this policy was currently under review.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT – Mayor Kilsheimer reported the City had an outstanding Old Florida 

Outdoor Festival this past weekend. He thanked staff for their hard work during this festival.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reported he sent a letter last week to Ann Dupee, President of Lake Apopka 

Natural Gas District Board of Directors. He advised this letter has been emailed to all of the 

Commissioners and to the elected officials in the cities of Clermont and Winter Garden. He 

declared this was a topic he wanted to put on the table for future discussion. He read this letter 

into the record regarding the continuing public purpose of the Lake Apopka Natural Gas District. 

A copy of the letter will be filed with these minutes.  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith stated they do not have private meetings and their meetings are open 

to the public. He said the City has received over $2 million dollars in the last fifteen years in 

franchise fees and city taxes. He stated the gas infrastructure increases the asset to the community.  

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 10:30 p.m. 
 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

- Page 26 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve appointment of the Fifth Trustee to the General Employees' Pension Board. 
  

- Page 27 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

   X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:   March 2, 2016 

       PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  City Clerk 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:   

       OTHER:                                            

  
 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF JEANNE GREEN AS THE FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

Request: APPROVE AND RATIFY THE APPOINTMENT OF JEANNE GREEN AS THE 

FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The General Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees, at its February 18, 2016 meeting, chose 

Jeanne Green to serve as the Fifth Trustee of the Board for the two-year term of 2016 & 2017. 

 

As required by State Law and the Operating Rules of the Board, the Fifth Trustee has been chosen by the 

board and is being presented to the City Council for approval and ratification, as a ministerial act. 

 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

None. 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Approve and ratify the Fifth Trustee appointment of Jeanne Green to the General Employees’ 

Retirement System Board of Trustees for the two-year term of 2016 & 2017. 

 

 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 

Commissioners     HR Director   City Clerk   

City Administrator    IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Development Director  Police Chief    

 

- Page 28 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Approve appointment of the Fifth Trustee to the Firefighters' Pension Board. 
  

- Page 29 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

   X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:   March 2, 2016 

       PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  City Clerk 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:   

       OTHER:                                            

  
 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF RAY THOMPSON AS THE FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE 

FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

Request: APPROVE AND RATIFY THE APPOINTMENT OF RAY THOMPSON AS THE 

FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE FIREFIGHTERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Firefighters’ Retirement System Board of Trustees, at its February 18, 2016 meeting, chose Ray 

Thompson to serve as the Fifth Trustee of the Board for the two-year term of 2016 & 2017. 

 

As required by State Law and the Operating Rules of the Board, the Fifth Trustee has been chosen by the 

board and is being presented to the City Council for approval and ratification, as a ministerial act. 

 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

None. 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Approve and ratify the Fifth Trustee appointment of Ray Thompson to the Firefighters’ Retirement 

System Board of Trustees for the two-year term of 2016 & 2017. 

 

 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 

Commissioners     HR Director   City Clerk   

City Administrator    IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Development Director  Police Chief    

 

- Page 30 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Approve appointment of the Fifth Trustee to the Police Officers' Pension Board. 
  

- Page 31 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

   X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:   March 2, 2016 

       PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  City Clerk 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:   

       OTHER:                                            

  
 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENT OF JIM GREEN AS THE FIFTH TRUSTEE TO THE POLICE 

OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

Request: APPROVE AND RATIFY THE APPOINTMENT OF JIM GREEN AS THE FIFTH 

TRUSTEE TO THE POLICE OFFICERS’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF 

TRUSTEES. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The Police Officers’ Retirement System Board of Trustees, at its February 18, 2016 meeting, chose Jim 

Green to serve as the Fifth Trustee of the Board for the two-year term of 2016 & 2017. 

 

As required by State Law and the Operating Rules of the Board, the Fifth Trustee has been chosen by the 

board and is being presented to the City Council for approval and ratification, as a ministerial act. 

 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

None. 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Approve and ratify the Fifth Trustee appointment of Jim Green to the Police Officers’ Retirement 

System Board of Trustees for the two-year term of 2016 & 2017. 

 

 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 

Commissioners     HR Director   City Clerk   

City Administrator    IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Development Director  Police Chief    

 

- Page 32 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. Approve appointments to the Public Risk Management Board of Directors. 
  

- Page 33 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: March 2, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:       City Administrator 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    None 

     OTHER:  

  
 

SUBJECT: APPOINTMENTS TO THE PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF A DIRECTOR AND AN ALTERNATE.  

 

Request: APPROVE 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

On February 1, 2016 the city became a member of Public Risk Management [PRM] for Group Health Trust 

insurance coverage.  PRM is a Florida Governmental Pool and is structured to be governed by a board of 

directors made up of member organizations.  It asks that each member [the City of Apopka] name a director 

and an alternate director.  PRM holds quarterly meetings where business of the “Pool” is discussed and 

action items voted on by the Board.  It is usual practice that the City Administrator/Manager or Finance 

Director be named to the Board as the voting member and the Human Resources/Risk Manager named as 

the alternate.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
N/A 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Appointment of Pam Barclay, Finance Director as Director and Human Resources Director, Sharon 

Thornton as the Alternate Director. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor      Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners (4)    HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

- Page 34 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. Authorize the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe Reserve, Phase 4. 
  

- Page 35 -



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: March 2, 2016 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

 OTHER:   Agreement 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: POE RESERVE, PHASE 4 (9 LOTS)  

 

Request: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE 

SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

  

The City’s standard Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement has been prepared for Poe Reserve, 

Phase 4, located south of North Orange Blossom Trail, west of State Road 451. 
 

________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
      

Not applicable  
 

________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Sewer and Water Capacity Agreement for Poe 

Reserve, Phase 4. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer   Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)   HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director  Police Chief 

  

- Page 36 -



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 2, 2016 

POE RESERVE, PHASE 4 - SEWER AND WATER CAPACITY AGREEMENT 

PAGE 2 

 

 

 

Poe Reserve, Phase 4 

Owner: Poe Reserve, LLC 

4.96 +/- Acres 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

  

 

Subject Property 

- Page 37 -



- Page 38 -



- Page 39 -



- Page 40 -



- Page 41 -



- Page 42 -



- Page 43 -



- Page 44 -



- Page 45 -



- Page 46 -



- Page 47 -



- Page 48 -



- Page 49 -



- Page 50 -



- Page 51 -



- Page 52 -



- Page 53 -



- Page 54 -



- Page 55 -



- Page 56 -



- Page 57 -



- Page 58 -



- Page 59 -



- Page 60 -



- Page 61 -



- Page 62 -



- Page 63 -



- Page 64 -



- Page 65 -



- Page 66 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. Award Bid No. 2016-02 to Wheeled Coach Industries, Inc. 
  

- Page 67 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 
 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  March 2, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:          Fire Department 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      None 

     OTHER:  _______________ 
  

 

SUBJECT: BID NO. 2016-02 - “APOPKA FIRE DEPARTMENT CONSTRUCTION OF ONE (1) NEW 

AMBULANCE” 
 

Request: AWARD THE BID TO WHEELED COACH INDUSTRIES, INC. 
  
 

SUMMARY: 
 

On January 22, 2016, the Fire Department issued an invitation to bid for the construction of a new ambulance, which 

was advertised in the Apopka Chief, and posted online to Demand Star.  Bid No. 2016-02 was opened at a public 

hearing on February 23, 2016 and three bids were received. 
 

1. ETR (AEV Ambulances) Sanford, Florida (construction in North Carolina) $107,510.00 

2. Taylor Made Sales  Newport, Arkansas (construction in Arkansas)  $ 79,795.00 

3. Wheeled Coach Industries Winter Park, Florida (construction in Winter Park, FL) $ 98,860.00 

 (Alternate Wheeled Coach bid, which includes the Stryker stretcher mounting)  $ 99,845.00  
 

The low bidder is located in Arkansas, where construction would be performed.  The bid does not include provisions 

for inspections or construction oversight visits.  There are no local service centers for this company, with the closest 

being in Alabama.  Their current bid does not include transporting of the City provided F450 chassis to or from 

Arkansas.  Additionally, emergency lights and sirens from this company are not covered in the warranty provided. 
 

Given the geographical limitations that would be required from Taylor Made Sales, the Fire Department is requesting 

Council approval for the second lowest bid received from Wheeled Coach Industries (based in Winter Park, Florida).  

The City currently utilizes six Wheeled Coach ambulances and have remained satisfied with the performance of their 

vehicles.  This will also help maintain consistency within the fleet.  Wheeled Coach provides local service at their 

Winter Park facility, along with mobile onsite service.  The service warranty includes all emergency lighting and 

sirens.  Wheeled Coach included an additional price option to install a City owned Stryker Power Load System, a 

savings of $1,500.00 if installed with this new construction. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

EMS Capital Equipment line 6400.  Purchase of the new ambulance is included in FY 2015/16 budget. 
  
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

The Fire Department requests council award the bid to Wheeled Coach Industries, in the amount of $99,845.00. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

- Page 68 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. Award a contract to PRMG for a Police Impact Fee Study and amend the Fire/EMS Impact Fee Study contract. 
  

- Page 69 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

  x   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  March 02, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:            Finance 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:  

       OTHER:               Amendment to Fire/EMS Impact Fee Study      
                 PRMG Proposal – Police Impact Fee Study  
 

SUBJECT: FIRE AND EMS IMPACT FEES AND POLICE IMPACT FEES 

 

Request: AWARD A CONTRACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $13,100 TO PUBLIC RESOURCES 

MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. TO PERFORM A POLICE SERVICES IMPACT FEE 

STUDY AND AMEND THE AWARDED CONTRACT FOR THE FIRE/EMS 

SERVICES IMPACT FEE STUDY TO $13,100 FROM $16,600 DUE TO THE 

COMPANY PERFORMING BOTH. 
  
SUMMARY: 
 

On September 2, 2015, Council awarded a contract to Public Resources Management Group (PRMG) in the 

amount of $16,600 to perform a Fire and EMS Services Impact Fee study. Staff met with the consultant to 

begin gathering information. It was suggested at that time that the City should consider implementing a Police 

Service Impact Fee. 

  

PRMG submitted a proposal to perform the Police Services Impact Fee Study at a cost of $13,100.  If the City 

accepts this proposal, PRMG has agreed to reduce their existing agreement for the performance of the Fire and 

EMS Services Study to a like amount of $13,100, which is a reduction of $3,500. The amended cost results from 

the economies of scale associated with reviewing, reporting, and presenting the Police and Fire/EMS Impact 

Fees concurrently. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

General Fund    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

 Award a contract in the amount of $13,100 to Public Resources Management Group, Inc. to perform a Police 

Services Impact Fee Study and amend the Fire/EMS Services Impact Fee Study contract with PRMG by 

reducing it by $3,500 (amended total $13,000). 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

- Page 70 -



  
Public Resources Management Group, Inc. 
Utility,  Rate, Financial and Management Consultants  

 

 
 

341 NORTH MAITLAND AVENUE – SUITE 300 – MAITLAND, FL 32751 
TELEPHONE: (407) 628-2600  FAX: (407) 628-2610  EMAIL: prmg@prmginc.com 

WEBSITE: www.prmginc.com 

   February 24, 2016 
 
Mr. Glenn Irby 
City Administrator 
City of Apopka 
120 East Main Street  
Apopka, Florida 32703   
 
Subject:  Amendment to Fire/EMS Services Impact Fee Study 
                                
Dear Mr. Irby: 

Based on the City’s request to prepare a Police Services Impact Fee Study, Public Resources 
Management Group, Inc. proposes to amend the existing Fire/EMS Impact Fee Study budget to 
reflect the economies of scale of associated with reviewing, reporting and presenting the Police 
and Fire Impact Fees concurrently.   Our prosed amendment would reduce the Fire/EMS study 
budget by $3,500.00.  If this amendment is acceptable please signify your approval below and 
return a copy of this letter for our files. 
 
 
    Very truly yours, 

    Public Resources Management Group, Inc 
    
     
 
 
    Henry L. Thomas 
    Vice President 
 
 
 

ACCEPTED BY: 

City of Apopka 
 
 
   
 Name 
 
    
 Title Date 

- Page 71 -



  
Public Resources Management Group, Inc. 
Utility,  Rate, Financial and Management Consultants  

 

K:\1212.City of Apopka\04.Fire EMS Svcs Impact Fee Study\Correspondence\Contract Related\Police ImpactFeeLetterAgree.doc 
 

341 NORTH MAITLAND AVENUE – SUITE 300 – MAITLAND, FL 32751 
TELEPHONE: (407) 628-2600  FAX: (407) 628-2610  EMAIL: prmg@prmginc.com 

WEBSITE: www.prmginc.com 

   February 24, 2016 
 
Mr. Glenn Irby 
City Administrator 
City of Apopka 
120 East Main Street  
Apopka, Florida 32703   
 
Subject:  Proposal to Provide a Police Services Impact Fee Study 
                                
Dear Mr. Irby: 

Public Resources Management Group, Inc. (PRMG) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide 
consulting services to the City of Apopka, Florida (the "City" or "Client") associated with the 
development of a Police Services Impact Fee Study.  The purpose of the study is to assist the 
City development of proposed Police Services Impact Fees to be applied to new development.    
 
PROJECT TEAM AND BILLING RATES 

With respect to the performance of this engagement, Mr. Henry L. Thomas will be the principal 
in charge, project manager and primary contact with the City.  Other staff consultants, analysts 
and administrative personnel will be utilized during the course of the engagement as needed.  
The services covered by this Agreement shall be billed based on the direct labor rates set out in 
Attachment B.  
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services to be performed by PRMG is included on Attachment A. 
 
COMPENSATION AND BILLING 

Based on the Scope of Services as summarized herein in Attachment A and the direct hourly 
labor billing rates as identified on Attachment B, we propose to establish a not-to-exceed 
contract budget to provide consulting services associated with the performance of the Impact Fee 
Study of $13,100.     
 
This project budget amount includes the direct cost of personnel anticipated to be assigned to the 
project as well as any other direct costs such as travel, telephone, and copying, printing and 
shipping charges.  The costs incurred by PRMG for such other direct costs, if any, will be billed 
to the City based on the Standard Unit Costs or reimbursement schedule as reflected on 
Attachment B.  It is proposed that PRMG will bill monthly for services relative to this 
engagement based on the hourly amount of time spent by the project team members, the other 
direct costs incurred and the pass-through of any sub-consulting costs that may be required for 
the engagement.  No additional services above the cost estimate will be performed without the 
prior written authorization of the City.   
 

- Page 72 -



Mr. Glenn Irby 
City of Apopka 
February 24, 2016 
Page 2 
 

K:\1212.City of Apopka\04.Fire EMS Svcs Impact Fee Study\Correspondence\Contract Related\Police ImpactFeeLetterAgree.doc  

TERM OF AGREEMENT 

The terms of this proposed agreement and the associated direct hourly labor billing rates for 
PRMG personnel shall be in effect and continue through December 31, 2016, or some other 
contract period as mutually agreed to between the City and PRMG. 
 
ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Additional standard terms and conditions, that are made part of this proposed agreement, are set 
forth in Attachment C which is made a part of this proposal. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to the City. 
 
    Very truly yours, 

    Public Resources Management Group, Inc 
    
     
 
 
    Henry L. Thomas 
    Vice President 
 
 
 

ACCEPTED BY: 

City of Apopka 
 
 
   
 Name 
 
    
 Title Date 

- Page 73 -



 

 
K:\1212.City of Apopka\04.Fire EMS Svcs Impact Fee Study\Correspondence\Contract Related\Police ImpactFeeLetterAgree.doc 

A-1 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 
 

POLICE SERVICES IMPACT FEE RATE STUDY 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 
The scope of service to be performed by Public Resources Management Group, Inc. is related to 
the preparation of a Police Services Impact Fee Rate Study.  The scope of services shall be as 
follows: 
 
POLICE SERVICES IMPACT FEE STUDY 

The scope of services to be performed by PRMG with respect to the development of police 
services impact fees will include the following tasks: 
 
1. Data Acquisition and Review – PRMG will prepare a data request and review data 

compiled and provided by the City in order to develop the police services impact fees.  
Data that will be requested will include: i) capital improvement projects and master plans, 
equipment, and facilities required to provide the relevant services including future plans 
buildings and structures, vehicles and equipping of personnel; ii) population and 
development statistics; iii) service call information; iv) inventory of existing staffing, 
facilities and equipment; and v) any other data and information considered necessary to 
adequately perform the study.  PRMG will also collect information regarding impact fees 
charged by other neighboring jurisdictions; 

 
2. Service Area Forecast – An evaluation of the current service area demographics as well as 

a forecast of the service area needs will be reviewed based on data made available to 
PRMG.  Specifically, a review of the population forecast by type of dwelling unit 
(e.g., single-family, multi-family, etc.) and commercial development by land use type, if 
available (including the square footage of such developments located within the City and 
planned for the City), will be reviewed.  Additionally, a review of the population 
projections and other service area demographics as contained in such documents as the 
City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Florida Statistical Abstract; other information 
provided by the Bureau of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida; data 
made available by the City; and other such information will be relied upon.  The purpose of 
this task is to identify the future service area demands for police services and to estimate 
the capital requirements (level of service relationship) required for the fair share cost 
apportionment of such costs to future growth. 

 
3. Cost Allocation – The capital costs associated with meeting the relevant police service 

requirements for new customers will be allocated among the residential and commercial 
customer classifications, where appropriate.  The allocation of such costs will be based on 
the service area demographics and development characteristics of the City, and other 
factors as deemed appropriate by PRMG and the City. 

- Page 74 -



 

K:\1212.City of Apopka\04.Fire EMS Svcs Impact Fee Study\Correspondence\Contract Related\Police ImpactFeeLetterAgree.doc 

A-2 

 
4. Design of Police Impact Fees – PRMG will design impact fees for each specific customer 

classification related to police services.  The impact fees will be based on the allocation of 
costs among the customer classification, the level of service standards required for the 
police services and customer class, and the projection of capital needs for the planning 
period reflected in the report.  Additionally, PRMG will identify any external funding or 
credits which should be recognized in the derivation of the impact fees. 

 
5. Fee Comparisons – A comparison of the existing and proposed fees for residential 

dwellings and commercial use will be made with similar fees charged by other neighboring 
public jurisdictions. 

 
6. Preparation of Impact Fee Ordinance – PRMG will assist the City in reviewing and 

updating the draft police impact fee ordinance.  The review of the ordinance may include 
issues such as the level of rates charged and methodology for application, allowance for 
alternative methods of calculation, and establishment of a fund for the use of monies as 
considered necessary for the adoption of the fee. 

 
7. Presentation of Findings – A report will be prepared by PRMG detailing the data relied 

upon in the development of the proposed police impact fees, the assumptions and analyses 
performed relative to the derivation of such fees, and our conclusions and 
recommendations for consideration by the City.   It is anticipated that a draft report will be 
prepared for consideration and review by the City staff prior to presentation to the City 
Commission for adoption and implementation.  This task will also include attendance at a 
public meeting to present the study results. 

 
LIST OF DELIVERABLES 

The deliverables to be provided in this engagement include the following items: 
 
 Data Request 

 Police Services Impact Fee Cost Analysis 

 Proposed Police  Services Impact Fees 

 Police Impact Fee Comparisons with Other Jurisdictions 

 Briefing Document to Summarize Proposed Police Services Impact Fees 

 Police Services Impact Fee Study Report 

 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES  

During the course of the study, the Client may request additional services from PRMG.  
Examples of such additional services would include additional public meetings above and 
beyond the meetings identified in the scope of services.  Other examples of additional services 
include providing services relating to meeting with third parties regarding the derivation of the 
rates and fees, providing litigation support services in the event of a challenge of the rates or 
fees, performance of impact fee negotiations and the preparation of developer agreements for the 

- Page 75 -



 

K:\1212.City of Apopka\04.Fire EMS Svcs Impact Fee Study\Correspondence\Contract Related\Police ImpactFeeLetterAgree.doc 

A-3 

payment of such impact fees with potential large developments within the City limits, requests 
for updated impact fee scenarios after substantial completion of the initial work, and other 
related issues not contemplated in the above scope of services.   No additional services are 
contemplated at this time and such services will not be conducted until authorized by the Client 
and as mutually agreed upon between the Client and PRMG. 

- Page 76 -



 

 
K:\1212.City of Apopka\04.Fire EMS Svcs Impact Fee Study\Correspondence\Contract Related\Police ImpactFeeLetterAgree.doc 

B-1 

ATTACHMENT B 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

POLICE SERVICES IMPACT FEE STUDY 

SCHEDULE OF DIRECT LABOR HOURLY RATES AND STANDARD UNIT COSTS 

 
DIRECT LABOR HOURLY RATES 

Project Team Title 
Direct Labor 

Hourly Rates [*] 
Principal $185.00 
Associate $150.00 
Managing Consultant $135.00 
Supervising Consultant $120.00 
Senior Consultant $115.00 
Rate Consultant $105.00 
Consultant $  95.00 
Senior Rate Analyst $  85.00 
Rate Analyst $  75.00 
Analyst $  65.00 
Assistant Analyst $  55.00 
Administrative $  52.00 
__________ 
[*] Direct labor hourly rates effective twelve months after the date of execution of the Agreement; rates 

will be adjusted by not more than the net percentage change (but not less than 0%) in the Consumer 
Price Index – Urban Consumers per annum (rounded to the nearest dollar) or as mutually agreed 
between parties for invoices rendered after each anniversary date of each year thereafter until project 
completion or termination of the Agreement between the parties. 

 
 

STANDARD COST RATES 
Expense Description Standard Rates [*] 

Mileage Allowance – Personal Car Use Only $0.485 per Mile 
Reproduction (Black and White) (In-house) $0.05 per Page 
Reproduction (Color) (In-house) $0.25 per Page 
Reproduction (Contracted) Actual Cost 
Computer Time $0.00 per Hour 
Telephone Charges Actual Cost 
Delivery Charges Actual Cost 
Lodging/Other Travel Costs Actual Cost 
Meals Not-to-exceed per PRMG Employee: 
 $8.00 – Breakfast 

$12.00 – Lunch 
$25.00 – Dinner 

Subconsultant Services Actual Cost plus 5.0% 
Other Costs for Services Rendered Actual Cost 
__________ 
[*] Standard cost rates effective twelve months after the date of execution of the Agreement; where 

applicable, rates will be adjusted by not more than the net percentage change (but not less than 0%) in 
the Consumer Price Index – Urban Consumers per annum (rounded to the nearest dollar) or as 
mutually agreed between parties for invoices rendered after each anniversary date of each year 
thereafter until project completion or termination of the Agreement between the parties. Any Standard 
Rate adopted by policy by Client will supersede rates shown above. 

- Page 77 -



PUBLIC RESOURCES MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. ATTACHMENT C  
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
K:\1212.City of Apopka\04.Fire EMS Svcs Impact Fee Study\Correspondence\Contract Related\Police ImpactFeeLetterAgree.doc 

C-1 

I. SCOPE 

Public Resources Management Group, Inc. (PRMG) 
agrees to perform the professional consulting services 
described in the agreement (the "Work") that 
incorporates these standard terms and conditions.  
Unless modified in writing by the parties hereto, the 
duties of PRMG shall not be construed to exceed 
those services specifically set forth in the agreement.  
These terms and conditions and the agreement, when 
executed by the Client, shall constitute a binding 
agreement on both parties (hereinafter after the 
"Agreement"). 
 
 
II. COMPENSATION 

The Client, as defined in the agreement, agrees to pay 
for the services as billed within thirty (30) days of 
receiving the invoice.  Amounts paid after thirty (30) 
days may be subject to interest charges, not to exceed 
a monthly compound rate of one percent (1.0%) 
applied to the delinquent unpaid balance. 
 
Time-related charges will be made in accordance 
with the billing rate referenced in the agreement.  
Other indirect expenses and subcontractor services, if 
any, will be billed in accordance with the standard 
unit cost rates as referenced in the agreement or if no 
reference is provided, at the actual cost as incurred by 
PRMG. 
 
 
III. RESPONSIBILITY 

PRMG is employed to render a professional service 
only, and any payments made by Client are 
compensation solely for such services rendered and 
recommendations made in carrying out the Work.  
PRMG shall perform analyses, provide opinions, 
make factual presentations, and provide professional 
advice and recommendations.  PRMG does not 
expressly warrant or guarantee its services. 
 
 
IV. RELIANCE UPON INFORMATION 

PROVIDED BY OTHERS. 

If PRMG's performance of services hereunder 
requires PRMG to rely on information provided by 
other parties (excepting PRMG's subcontractors), 
PRMG shall not independently verify the validity, 
completeness or accuracy of such information unless 
otherwise expressly engaged to do so in writing by 
Client. 
 
 

V. INDEMNIFICATION 

PRMG agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold Client 
harmless from and against any liability arising out of 
the negligent errors or negligent omissions of PRMG, 
its agents, employees, or representatives, in the 
performance of duties set forth in Article I. 
Regardless of any other term of this Agreement, in no 
event shall PRMG be responsible or liable to Client 
for any incidental, consequential, or other indirect 
damages. 
 
Client agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold PRMG 
harmless from and against any liability arising out of 
the negligent errors or negligent omissions of Client, 
its agents, employees, or representatives, in the 
performance of duties set forth in Article I. 
 
 
VI. INSURANCE 

PRMG shall maintain during the life of the 
agreement the following minimum insurance: 
 
1. Commercial general liability insurance, 

including hired and non-owned automobiles, 
with the following limits: 

 
Each Occurrence $1,000,000 
Damage to Rented Premises 
 (Each Occurrence) $300,000 
Medical Expense (Any one person) $5,000 
Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
General Aggregate $2,000,000 
Products – Completed/Operation 
 General Aggregate $2,000,000 

 
2. Statutory worker's compensation and employers' 

liability insurance as required by state law. 
 
3. Professional liability insurance at a limit of 

liability of not less than $2,000,000 aggregate. 
 
 
VII. SUBCONTRACTS 

Unless specifically specified in the Agreement, 
PRMG shall be entitled, to the extent determined to 
be appropriate by PRMG, to subcontract any portion 
of the Work to be performed under this Agreement. 
 
 
VIII. ASSIGNMENT 

These terms and conditions and the agreement to 
which they are attached are binding on the heirs, 
successors, and assigns of the parties hereto.  This 

- Page 78 -



PUBLIC RESOURCES MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. ATTACHMENT C  
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
K:\1212.City of Apopka\04.Fire EMS Svcs Impact Fee Study\Correspondence\Contract Related\Police ImpactFeeLetterAgree.doc 

C-2 

agreement may not be assigned by Client or PRMG 
without prior, written consent of the other. 
 
 
IX. INTEGRATION 

These terms and conditions and the agreement to 
which they are attached represent the entire 
understanding of Client and PRMG as to those 
matters contained herein.  No prior oral or written 
understanding shall be of any force or effect with 
respect to those matters covered herein.  The 
agreement may not be modified or altered except in 
writing signed by both parties. 
 
 
X. JURISDICTION 

This agreement shall be administered and interpreted 
under the laws of the State of Florida.  Jurisdiction of 
litigation arising from the agreement shall be in that 
state. 
 
 
XI. SEVERABILITY 

If any part of the Agreement is found unenforceable 
under applicable laws, such part shall be inoperative, 
null and voice insofar as it is in conflict with said 
laws, but the remainder of the Agreement shall be in 
full force and effect. 
 
 
XII. FORCE MAJEURE 

PRMG shall not be responsible for delays in 
performing the scope of services that may result from 
causes beyond the reasonable control or 
contemplation of PRMG.  PRMG will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force 
majeure. 
 
 
XIII. NO BENEFIT FOR THIRD PARTIES 

The services to be performed by PRMG hereunder 
are intended solely for the benefit of Client, and 
neither right nor benefit is conferred on, nor any 
contractual relationship intended or established with 
any person or entity not a party to this Agreement.  
No such person or entity shall be entitled to rely on 
PRMG's performance of its services hereunder. 
 
 
XIV. WORK PRODUCT 

PRMG and Client recognize that PRMG's Work 
product submitted in performance of this Agreement 

is intended only for the Client's benefit and use.  
Change, alteration, or reuse on another project by 
Client shall be at Client's sole risk, and Client shall 
hold harmless and indemnify PRMG against all 
losses, damages, costs, and expenses, including 
attorneys' fees, arising out of or related to any such 
unauthorized change, alteration, or reuse. 
 
 
XV. SUSPENSION OF WORK 

Client may suspend, in writing, all or a portion of the 
Work under the agreement in the event unforeseen 
circumstances beyond Client's control make normal 
progress of the Work impossible.  PRMG may 
request that the Work be suspended by notifying 
Client, in writing, of circumstances that are 
interfering with the normal progress of Work.  
PRMG may suspend Work on the project in the event 
Client does not pay invoices when due.  PRMG shall 
be compensated for its reasonable expenses resulting 
from such suspension including mobilization and de-
mobilization.  The time for completion of the Work 
shall be extended by the number of days Work is 
suspended.  In the event that the period of suspension 
exceeds 90 days, the terms of the agreement are 
subject to renegotiation and both parties are granted 
the option to terminate Work on the suspended 
portion of the project. 
 
 
XVI. TERMINATION OF WORK 

Client may terminate all or a portion of the Work 
covered by the agreement for its convenience.  Either 
party may terminate Work if the other party fails to 
perform in accordance with the provisions of the 
agreement. Termination of the agreement is 
accomplished by 15 days prior written notice from 
the party initiating termination to the other.  Notice of 
termination shall be delivered by certified mail with 
receipt for delivery returned to the sender. 
 
This agreement may be terminated by PRMG: a) for 
cause, if Client breaches this Agreement through no 
fault of PRMG and Client neither cures such material 
breach nor makes reasonable progress toward cure 
within 15 days after PRMG has given written notice 
of the alleged breach to Client; or b) upon five days' 
notice if Work under this Agreement has been 
suspended by either Client or PRMG in the aggregate 
for more than ninety (90) days. 
 
In the event of termination, PRMG shall perform 
such additional Work as is necessary for the orderly 
filing of documents and closing of the project.  The 

- Page 79 -



PUBLIC RESOURCES MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. ATTACHMENT C  
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

 
K:\1212.City of Apopka\04.Fire EMS Svcs Impact Fee Study\Correspondence\Contract Related\Police ImpactFeeLetterAgree.doc 

C-3 

time spent on such additional Work shall not exceed 
five percent (5%) of the time expended on the 
terminated portion of the project prior to the effective 
date of termination.  PRMG shall be compensated by 
the client for Work actually performed prior to the 
effective date of termination plus the Work required 
for filing and closing as described in this Article. 
 
 
XVII. ARBITRATION 

All claims, disputes and other matters in question 
between the parties to this agreement arising out of or 
relating to this agreement or the breach thereof, 
which are not disposed by mutual agreement of the 
parties, shall be decided by arbitration in accordance 
with the Florida Arbitration Code.  No arbitration 
arising out of or relating to this agreement shall 
include any person not a party to this agreement 
except by written consent containing a specific 
reference to this agreement and signed by the parties 
hereto and persons to be joined. 
 
This agreement to arbitrate shall be specifically 
enforceable under prevailing arbitration law. 
 
Notice of demand for arbitration shall be filed in 
writing with the other parties to this agreement.  The 
demand shall be made within a reasonable time after 
the claim, dispute, or other matter in question has 
arisen, but in no event after the date when the 
institution of legal or equitable proceedings would be 
barred by the applicable statute of limitations.  The 
award rendered by the arbitrators shall be final and 
judgment may be entered in accordance with 
applicable law in any court having jurisdiction. 
 
 
XVIII. NOTICES 

All notices required under this Agreement shall be by 
personal delivery, facsimile or mail to the PRMG 
Project Manager and to the person signing the 
Agreement on behalf of the Client, and shall be 
effective upon delivery to the address stated in the 
Agreement. 
 
 
XIX. PUBLIC RECORDS 

Pursuant to applicable Florida law, PRMG's records 
associated with this Agreement may be subject to 
Florida's public records laws, Florida Statutes 119.01, 
et seq., as amended from time to time. PRMG shall 
comply with all public records obligations set for in 
such laws, including those obligations to keep, 

maintain, provide access to, and maintain any 
applicable exemptions to public records, and transfer 
all such public records to the Client at the conclusion 
of this Agreement, as provided for in Florida Statutes 
119.0701 (2013). 

- Page 80 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Ordinance No. 2473 – Second Reading – Corrective Ordinance     David Moon 
  

- Page 81 -



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                           ________                                      

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: March 2, 2016 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 2439 
X OTHER: Ordinance Amendment   Ordinance No. 2473 

    Vicinity Map 
                                          ________                                     _ 
SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 2439 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2473 TO 

AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 2439 TO CORRECT SCRIVENER ERRORS IN 
THE ORDINANCE HEADING AND LEGAL DECRIPTION AS STATED 
IN THE ORDINANCE.                         

                                           ________                                     _ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY, LLC 
 
LOCATIONS:   2860 Clarcona Road - 27-21-28-6024-00-005 - (3.40 +/- Acres)  
    2870 Clarcona Road - 27-21-28-6024-00-006 - (2.37 +/- Acres) 
    476 Jellystone Avenue - 27-21-28-6024-00-007 - (3.61 +/- Acres) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.38 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Ordinance No. 2439 was originally adopted containing scrivener errors made 
while transcribing the owner’s name and parcel identification number. Ordinance No. 2473 corrects the stated 
errors within Ordinance No. 2439.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  Correcting a scrivener’s error is a legislative action and notice to the 
County is not required.  
 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 5, 2016 – Public Notice and Notification 

February 19, 2016 – Ordinance Heading Ad  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
 
February 17, 2016 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 
March 2, 2016 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 
 
                                           ________   ____                                   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  
The City Council, at its meeting on February 17, 2016, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2473 to amend Ordinance 
No. 2439 and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on March 2, 2016. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2473. 
 
                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   - Page 82 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2473  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CORRECTING 

SCRIVENER’S ERRORS IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

OWNED BY TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY, LLC., IN ORDINANCE NO. 2439; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2439 was enacted using a legal description 

of the property in the ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the title and legal description of the property provided 

contained scrivener’s errors in the parcel identification number; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City wishes to correct the legal description 

contained in Ordinance No. 2439. 

 

NOTE: Underlined words constitute the additions to the 

existing text of the city of Apopka Code of Ordinances, 

strikethroughs constitute deletions to the existing text, 

and asterisks (***) indicate an omission from the existing 

text which is intended to remain unchanged. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  The “Whereas” clauses above are the findings of the 

City of Apopka. 

  

 SECTION II:  The title and legal description stated in Section 1 

of Ordinance No. 2439 shall be amended to read as follows:  

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CORRECTING 

SCRIVENER’S ERRORS IN THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY 

OWNED BY TECHNOLOGY PROPERTIES PROPERTY, LLC., IN ORDINANCE 

NO. 2439; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 27-

21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 475.57 FT TO 

POB TH CONT S00-17-40W 25 FT TH S89-58-35W 25 FT TH RUN S00-17-

40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 105 FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY 

FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE SWLY RAD OF 95 FT DELTA 08-

17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 25 FT 

DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH S01-29-51W 215.22 FT TH N89-

58-35E 416.69 FT TH N69-01-28E 10 FT TH N20-58-32W 18.89 FT TH 

N69-01-28 E 135 FT TH N20-58-32W 252.08 FT TH S89-58-35W 434.24 

FT TO POB (LESS THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESC: COMM 

- Page 83 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2473 

Page 2 

 
AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TO W 

LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP S/8 TH 

S00-17-40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF N120 FT OF 

S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 FT TO WLY R/W LINE 

OF SR 435 (CLARCONA RD) TH S20-58-33E 729.76 FT TO NE COR OF TR 

T-10 YOGI BEAR'S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-30-

09W 722.91 FT ALONG SAID TR T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH N88-

30-09W 3 FT TO NW COR OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-30-

09E 3 FT TH S01-29-51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459) PARCEL 

I.D.: 27-20-28-0000-00-005 27-21-28-6024-00-005  CONTAINING: 3.40 

+/- ACRES AND;  

 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 27-

21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 500.57 FT TH 

RUN S89-58-35W 25 FT TH S00-17-40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY 

RAD 105 FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE 

CONCAVE SWLY RAD 95 FT DELTA 08-17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE 

CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 25 FT DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH 

S01-29-51W 215.22 FT TO POB TH CONT S01-29-51W 167.76 FT TH N89-

58-35E 492.56 FT TH N30-44-24E 8.03 FT TH N69-01-28E 131.97 FT TH 

N20-58-32W 196.07 FT TH S69-01-28W 135 FT TH S20-58-32E 18.89 FT 

TH S69-01-28W 10 FT TH S89-58-35W 416.69 FT TO POB (LESS THE W 3 

FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESC: COMM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF 

NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TO W LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 

OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP S/8 TH S00-17-40W 475.58 FT 

ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF N120 FT OF S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS 

REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 FT TO WLY R/W LINE OF SR 435 (CLARCONA 

RD) TH S20-58-33E 729.76 FT TO NE COR OF TR T-10 YOGI BEAR'S 

JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-30-09W 722.91 FT ALONG 

SAID TR T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH N88-30-09W 3 FT TO NW 

COR OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-30-09E 3 FT TH S01-29-

51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459)PARCEL I.D.:27-20-28-0000-00-

006 27-21-28-6024-00-006 CONTAINING: 2.37 +/- ACRES AND; 

 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 27-

21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH S00-17-40W 500.57 FT TH S89-

58-35W 25 FT TH S00-17-40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 105 

FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE SWLY 

RAD 95FT DELTA 08-17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE 

NELY RAD 25 FT DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH S01-29-51W 

382.89 FT TO POB TH CONT S01-29-51W 189.70 FT TH RUN S88-30-09E 

318.32 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE SELY RAD 100 FT CHORD N81-23-00E NELY 

FOR 35.31 FT TH S01-29-51E 16.17 FT M/L TH S88-30-09E 373 FT TH  

N20-58-32W  281.60  FT  TH S69-01-28W  131.97 FT TH S30-44-24W 

8.03 FT TH S89-58-35W 492.56 FT TO POB & COMM AT SE CORNER OF OAK 

HGTS REP S/8 TH RUN N89-59-04E 129.21 FT TO W R/W OF APOPKA 

VINELAND ROAD TH N20-58-32W 107.53 FT TO POB SAID PT BEING SE 

CORNER OF TR T-10 OF YOGI BEARS JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT 

3347/2482; CONT N20-58-32W 115 FT TO POB TH S58-19-30W 50.88 FT 

TH S46-42-32W 45 FT TH N88-17-28W 120 FT TH N80-52-21W 115 FT TH 

N88-30-09W 64.49 FT TH N01-30-04E 43.83 FT TH S88-30-20E 373 FT 

TO POB PER 10831/5459 (LESS THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING 

- Page 84 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2473 

Page 3 

 
DESC: COMM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 

FT TO W LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP 

S/8 TH S00-17-40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF N120 FT 

OF S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 FT TO WLY R/W 

LINE OF SR 435 (CLARCONA RD) TH S20-58-33E 729.76 FT TO NE COR OF 

TR T-10 YOGI BEAR'S JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-

30-09W 722.91 FT ALONG SAID TR T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH 

N88-30-09W 3 FT TO NW COR OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-

30-09E 3 FT TH S01-29-51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459) 27-21-

28-6024-00-007 CONTAINING: 3.61 +/- ACRES  

 

TOTAL COMBINED ACRES: 9.38 ACRES +/-   

      

SECTION III:  This Ordinance is deemed to be severable.  If any 

section or portion of a section of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, 

unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or 

impair the validity, force, or effect of any other section or part of 

this Ordinance. 

  

 SECTION IV:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section 

or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION V:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VI: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  

 
 

        

ATTEST:  

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: February 5, 2016 & February 19, 2016 

READ FIRST TIME: January 20, 2016 

 

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED:     February 3, 2016 

 

 

 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

- Page 85 -



ORDINANCE NO. 2473 

Page 4 

 
ANNEXATION 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY, LLC 

CLARCONA ROAD   

             

                          

          

        Parcel IDs: 27-21-28-6024-00-005                   

          27-21-28-6024-00-006  

          27-21-28-6024-00-007  

Total Acres: 9.38 +/-      

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

- Page 86 -



- Page 87 -



- Page 88 -



- Page 89 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Donation offer of real property to the City.  Glenn A. Irby 
  

- Page 90 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:                  March 2, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:                              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:              Donation Agreement 

 X   OTHER:  Appropriations/Donations/Grants 

  
 

SUBJECT: DONATION OFFER TO THE CITY OF REAL PROPERTY. 
 

Request: DIRECT THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO PROCEED WITH CONVEYING 

TITLE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY TO THE CITY AFTER ENSURING THE 

TITLE TO THE LAND IS CLEAR OF ALL LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Certain real properties located at 2029 Plymouth Sorrento Road and 1839 Plymouth Sorrento Road is 

being offered by donation to the City to be used to construct a traffic signal mast arm at Yothers Road.  

The properties belong to a Mr. Daryl Carter. 

 

The properties will be conveyed via Special Warranty Deed.  The city has ordered a title search to ensure 

the land will have clear title.  The city, at the direction of the City Council will pay all fees associated 

with closing on the donation and transfer of title (a cost of approximately $1,355). 

 

According to the Donation Agreement, the City Council must accept the donation of land.  As we all 

know, the traffic signal at this intersection is necessary and this land is needed for construction. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

All costs incurred to transfer ownership will come from Transportation funds.    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Direct the City Administrator to proceed with conveying title of certain real property to the City after 

ensuring title to the land is clear of all liens and encumbrances. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

- Page 91 -



- Page 92 -



- Page 93 -



- Page 94 -



- Page 95 -



- Page 96 -



- Page 97 -



- Page 98 -



- Page 99 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. NRPA "Walk With Ease" Grant - Acceptance agreement and funding.  Glenn A. Irby 
  

- Page 100 -



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  March 02, 2016 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       NRPA WWE Agreement 

 X   OTHER:  Appropriations/Donations/Grants 
  

 

SUBJECT:  WALK WITH EASE GRANT 

 

Request: ACCEPTANCE OF THE GRANT AWARD FOR WALK WITH EASE 
  

SUMMARY: 
Walk With Ease (WWE) was developed by the Arthritis Foundation to help people, with or without arthritis, to form 

safe and successful walking groups. The National Recreation and Park Association and the National Association of 

Chronic Disease Directors (NACDD), along with support from the CDC, have granted the City of Apopka $4000 to 

implement the WWE program (no matching funds from the City are required). 
 

 The City of Apopka is expected to:  

 Implement the WWE program 

 Advertise the program and engage a total of 100 Apopka residents to sign-up and participate.     

 Train at least two instructors in WWE through the online training course  

 Allocate a portion of grant funds toward purchasing participant materials  

 Submit quarterly reports  

 Participate in conference calls, as requested  

 

Program Implementation: 

 The Recreation Department will form walking groups at the following locations: 

o Alonzo Williams Park 

o Fran Carlton Center 

o Northwest Recreation Complex 

 Three Recreation staff members will complete the online training course & implement the program. 

 Staff directed sessions will begin in April & October 2016 

o Six week class sessions 

o Three times per week 

o Thirty minutes per session  

o 12 to 20 individuals per class 

 Participants will receive FREE Walk With Ease Manuals, snacks, and t-shirts.  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the City Administrator to execute the grant agreement with the National Recreation and Parks Association. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director   Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 

- Page 101 -



 
 
February 8, 2016 

City of Apopka  
120 E. Main St. 
Apopka, FL 32703 
Attn: Glenn Irby 
 
The National Recreation and Park Association (NRPA) is pleased to inform you that City of Apopka has 
been selected as one of 10 grantees to receive the Walk With Ease grant opportunity. You will receive a 
grant in the amount of $4,000. The grant period will commence upon execution of this agreement and 
end November 30, 2016. 
 

This grant opportunity is the result of a partnership between NRPA , the National Association of Chronic 
Disease Directors (NACDD) and the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC ) to increase the 
number of participants engaging in the Walk With Ease (WWE) program at local park and recreation 
agencies.  

Over the course of the grant period City of Apopka  is expected to: 
 

 Implement the WWE program at your local park and recreation agency, including holding at 
least four in-person class sessions and engaging a total of at least 100 participants in your 
classes 

 Train at least two instructors in WWE through the online training course 

 Allocate a portion of grant funds toward purchasing participant materials  

 Submit quarterly reports that include the following information (a template will be furnished by 
NRPA) 

o Number of unique participants per class 
o Number of total participants 
o Program description – dates, times, and frequency of the class 
o Instructor Information 

 Participate in conference calls, as requested 

Termination for Cause:  Either party shall have the right to terminate this MOU for cause if the other 
party (i) materially breaches its obligations and agreements hereunder, or (ii) commits and/or 
demonstrates gross neglect in the conduct of its duties hereunder.  In addition, NRPA retains the right to 
terminate this MOU, upon written notice, if it determines that continued affiliation with your agency is 
inconsistent with its mission and/or adversely affects its reputation.  In order to terminate this MOU for 
cause, and as a condition to exercising such right to terminate for cause, a party shall give the other 
party thirty (30) days’ prior written notice of such intention to terminate, specifying in detail the 
grounds or reasons for such termination for cause.  Following any notice of termination for cause, the 
receiving party shall be permitted a reasonable opportunity to cure such claimed cause to the 
reasonable satisfaction of the other party.   

 

 

- Page 102 -



 
 
 

Please acknowledge your agreement to the terms above by signing below.  Upon receipt of this signed 
form, a check will be issued for your grant funds. 

 
___________________________ 
Name of Agency 

 
___________________________ 
Primary Point of Contact  

 
___________________________ 
Signature 

 
___________________________ 
Email for Primary Contact 

 
___________________________ 
Printed Name 

 
___________________________ 
Telephone for Primary Contact 

  
___________________________ 
EIN Number 

 

  
 

Once signed, please scan and send to Colleen Pittard, Partnership Manager at cpittard@nrpa.org. Please 
do not hesitate to contact Colleen directly at 703.858.4741 should you have any questions. 

 
Sincerely,  

 

Rebecca Wickline 
Vice President, Business Development 

 

- Page 103 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Final Development Plan - Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center     David Moon 
  

- Page 104 -



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

   
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF:  March 2, 2016 

 ANNEXATION  FROM: Community Development 

 PLAT APPROVAL  EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Maps 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan   Site/Landscape Plans 

    Building Elevations 

    Waiver Request Letter 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:         FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE 

       
Request: APPROVE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR WEKIVA 

RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING AND WAIVER REQUEST. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Woolbright Wekiva, LLC. 
 
ENGINEER:   Harris Civil Engineers, LLC c/o David W. Taylor, P.E.  
 
ARCHITECT: ARC3 Architecture 
 
LOCATION: 2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
 
PARCEL ID #:  12-21-28-9093-00-010 (Lot 1) 
 
LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-1 
 
EXISTING USE: Retail Shopping Plaza (Retention Pond)   
 
PROPOSED USE: Daycare 
 
TRACT SIZE:   4.19 +/- acres 
 
OVERALL  
DEVELOPMENT SIZE: 24.74 +/- acres 
 
BUILDING SIZE: 10,000 sq. ft. – Daycare Center w/ Playground    
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief    

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNINGZONING\SITEPLANS\2016\WekivaRiverwalkDaycare\CC03-02-16\1WekivaRiverwalkDaycareBuildingFDP-CC 03-02-16.docx 

  

 - Page 105 -



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 2, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Office R-1 Single Family Residential 

East (County) Low Density Residential R-1 Single Family Residential 

South (City) Commercial C-1 Retail Shopping Plaza 

West (City) Commercial C-1 Retention 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Building - Final Development Plan proposes 

a 10,000 square feet daycare facility with a 5,000 square feet playground.  The proposed daycare facility will be 

located in the rear of the shopping plaza at the Northeast corner of the site adjacent to Wekiva Spring Road; within 

a portion of an existing retention pond. 

       

PARKING:  A total of 51 parking spaces are provided (34 required by code) of which two (2) are reserved as 

handicapped parking spaces.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided by an existing driveway cut along Wekiva Springs Road. 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  Staff has found the proposed building elevations to be in accordance with the 

City’s Development Design Guidelines. 

   

STORMWATER:   Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an on-site stormwater drainage 

system.  The stormwater management system is designed according to standards set forth in the Land 

Development Code.  

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the 

property. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape 

standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   

 

WAIVER REQUEST: 

 

1. The applicant is requesting a waiver to LDC Section 6.03.02 which requires a designated, covered drop-

off and pick-up area for the students. 

 

Request:  The applicant is requesting to eliminate the designated drop off area, 

 

Justification:  As a security measure, parents or guardians are required by the day care provider to bring the 

child inside the building and sign them in a registrar.   However, based on the City’s Land Development Code, 

day cares locating inside an existing commercial building or tenant space within a shopping plaza are not 

required to have a covered drop-off and pick-up area for patrons, even though location within the commercial 

space is considered a change of use.   

 

DRC recommendation-- DRC supports this waiver request. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
February 9, 2016 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 2, 2016 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

 - Page 106 -



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 2, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends the approval of the Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Building - 

Final Development Plan and to approve the waiver of LDC Section 6.03.02 which requires a designated, covered 

drop-off and pick-up area for the students. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its February 6, 2016, meeting, recommended approval (5-0) of the Final 

Development Plan; and recommended approval (5-0) of the waiver of LDC Section 6.03.02 which requires a 

designated, covered drop-off and pick-up area for the students for Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Building owned 

by Woolbright Wekiva, LLC, subject to the findings of this staff report.  (Note:  Andrew Hand, City Attorney, 

directed the Planning Commission to modify their motion to recommend approval of the Wekiva Riverwalk Day 

Care Final Development Plan by including that the plan is consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive 

Plan.) 

 

Approve the Final Development Plan for Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Building and issue the Final Development 

Order. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

- Page 107 -



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 2, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Woolbright Wekiva, LLC              

Engineer:  Harris Civil Engineers, LLC, c/o David W. Taylor, P.E. 
Architect:  ARC3 Architecture 
Parcel I.D. No:    12-21-28-9093-00-010 
Location:  2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
Acres:  4.19 +/-  

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 - Page 108 -



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 2, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 
 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Woolbright Wekiva, LLC              

Engineer:  Harris Civil Engineers, LLC, c/o David W. Taylor, P.E. 
Architect:  ARC3 Architecture 
Parcel I.D. No:    12-21-28-9093-00-010 
Location:  2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
Acres:  4.19 +/-  

 

 
  

AERIAL MAP 
 
 
 

 - Page 109 -



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 2, 2016 
WEKIVA RIVERWALK DAYCARE BUILDING – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 6 

 
 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:     Woolbright Wekiva, LLC              

Engineer:  Harris Civil Engineers, LLC c/o David W. Taylor, P.E. 
Architect:  ARC3 Architecture 
Parcel I.D. No:    12-21-28-9093-00-010 
Location:  2121 East Semoran Boulevard 
Acres:  4.19 +/-  

 

 
  

AERIAL SITE MAP 

 

 

- Page 110 -



- Page 111 -



- Page 112 -



- Page 113 -



- Page 114 -



- Page 115 -



- Page 116 -



- Page 117 -



- Page 118 -



- Page 119 -



- Page 120 -



- Page 121 -



- Page 122 -



- Page 123 -



- Page 124 -



- Page 125 -



- Page 126 -



- Page 127 -



- Page 128 -



- Page 129 -



- Page 130 -



- Page 131 -



- Page 132 -



- Page 133 -



- Page 134 -



- Page 135 -



- Page 136 -



- Page 137 -



CC

C

3

3 C

D4

4 D

AA

A

1

1 A

B2

2 B

- Page 138 -



- Page 139 -



- Page 140 -



- Page 141 -



- Page 142 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Appointment of Community Development Director.  
  

- Page 143 -



 

- Page 144 -



 
- Page 145 -



  
 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Thank you letter to the City of Apopka Cemetery Staff. 
  

- Page 146 -



- Page 147 -


	Top
	1. 03-02-16 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES - WS 01.15.16
	1-15-16 WS.pdf

	2. 03-02-16 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES - SP Mtg 01.15.16
	1-15-16 SP Mtg.pdf

	3. 03-02-16 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES - 02.17.16
	02-17-16.pdf

	 03-02-16 - CC - Proclamation
	 03-02-16 - CC - Employee Recognition - 10 yr
	 03-02-16 - CC - Employee Recognition - 10 yr
	 03-02-16 - CC - Employee Recognition - 10 yr
	 03-02-16 - CC - Employee Recognition - 10 yr
	 03-02-16 - CC - Employee Recognition - 15 yr
	 03-02-16 - CC - Employee Recognition - 20 yr
	1. 03-02-16 - CC - CONSENT - General Employees
	2016 General - Fifth Member GS.pdf

	2. 03-02-16 - CC - CONSENT - FD
	2016 Fire - Fifth Member GS.pdf

	3. 03-02-16 - CC - CONSENT - PD
	2016 Police - Fifth Member GS.pdf

	4. 03/02/16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Appointment to PRM Group Health Trust Board
	STAFF REPORT PRM Board Appointment Group Health Trust 2016_02_23.pdf

	5. 03-02-16 - CC - Consent Agenda (Action) - Sewer &amp; Water Capacity Agreement - Poe Reserve, Ph 4
	1 Poe Reserve Phase 4 Sewer-Water Capacity Agr Council.pdf
	2 Poe Reserve Ph 2 Sewer-Water Capacity Agreement.pdf

	6. 03-02-16 - CC - Consent Agenda - Bid #2016-02
	FD - Ambulance Bid Staff Report.pdf

	7. 03-02-16 - CC - Consent - Fire/EMS and Police Impact Fee Study
	Glenn - FIRE &amp; EMS RATE STUDY - amended_2.pdf
	AmendmentFireEMS Impact Fee Study 2 24 16.pdf
	Police Impact Fee Study 2 24 16.pdf

	1. 03-02-16 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2473 - Corrective Ordinance - Technology Property, LLC
	1 Technology Prop - Corrective Ord 2473 - 03-02-16 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2473 - Technology Prop.pdf
	3 Ord. 2439 - Technology Prop - Original Ord.pdf

	1. 03-02-16 - CC - Consent - Donation of Property
	Glenn - Yothers Donation.pdf
	Donation Agreement - Yothers Road.pdf

	2. 03-02-16 - CC - Grants - WWE Agreement
	Shakenya - Walk With Ease Grant.pdf
	Kenya - NRPA WWE Agreement - Apopka FL.pdf

	1. 03-02-16 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan - Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center
	1 Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Building FDP - City Council 3.2.16.pdf
	2 Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center Site Plan-Landscape Plan.pdf
	3 Wekiva Riverwalk Daycare Center Elevations.pdf
	4 Wekiva Riverwalk DayCare Waiver Letter.pdf

	2. COUNCIL
	3. PUBLIC
	1. 03-02-16 - CC - MAYORS REPORT - Appointment of CD Director
	Mark Reggentin Resume.pdf

	1. 03-02-16 - CC - Not Requiring Action - Thank you Letter, Cemetery Employees
	PS - Vernice L  Smith Commendation on cemetery workers Keith and Terry.pdf

	Bottom

